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City of New York 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH) 

Request for Proposals (RFP) for  
Community Emergency Network (CEN) Leaders 

PIN: 21EP000900R0X00 
Addendum #1 

 
June 10, 2020 

 
This Addendum contains the materials from the Pre-Proposal Teleconference held on May 26, 
2020, responses to all questions received by DOHMH on or before May 29, 2020, revisions to the 
RFP and extends the due date and time for submission. 
 
Except as otherwise stated in the attached and by any subsequent Addenda to the above-
referenced RFP the solicitation remains unchanged.  
 
Proposers are reminded that as indicated in Section V.A (p. 22) of the RFP, proposals 
submitted by New York State or City certified M/WBEs that meet or surpass the minimum 
threshold score (which is 70) will be given a 10% point preference of the total technical 
points earned in the evaluation of the proposal. 
 
The deadline for submitting a Request for Waiver of M/WBE Participation Requirement 
is June 17, 2020.  If you are considering requesting a Waiver, you are strongly 
encouraged to submit a Waiver Request before the deadline.  
 
The Proposal Due Date has been extended to June 24, 2020 at 2:00 P.M.  If you have 
submitted a proposal prior to receiving this addendum, you may amend your proposal 
and it will be considered as if submitted before the proposal due date. 
 
 

I. Pre-Proposal Teleconference Materials: 
Attached as Annex A are the PowerPoint presentation slides and the sign-in sheet from the 
Pre-Proposal Teleconference held on May 26, 2020 
 

II. Answers to Questions Received about the RFP:  
Answers to questions received by DOHMH are contained in Annex B. 
 

III. Changes to the RFP: 
The following sections of the RFP have been revised as follows.  

 
Attachment C: Acknowledgment of Addenda has been revised to reflect the 
issuance of this Addendum. Please see Annex C to this Addendum.  Proposers are 
required to use this version of Attachment C in their proposal packages 

 
IV. Revisions to RFP Language (deletions are crossed-out; new language is underlined in bold-

face type): 
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A. RFP Section I.D. – Page 2 revision 
 

D.  Proposal Due Date and Time: 
 

• June 16, 2020 June 24, 2020 
• 2:00 p.m. 

The Agency requires proposers to deliver proposals electronically via 
email at RFP@health.nyc.gov .  Mailed or hand-delivered proposals will 
not be accepted by the Agency. 

B. RFP Section IV – Page 15 revision 
 
Instructions: Proposers should provide all information required in the format below. The 
proposal should be typed on both sides of 8 ½” X 11” papers. The City of New York 
requests that all proposals be submitted on paper with no less than 30% postconsumer 
material content, i.e., the minimum recovered fiber content level for reprographic papers 
recommended by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (for any changes 
to that standard please consult: http:www.epa.gov/cpg/products/printing.htm. Pages 
should be paginated. The proposal will be evaluated on the basis of its content, not 
length. Failure to comply with any of these instructions will not make the proposal non-
responsive. Proposers should clearly mark any section of their proposal that is 
confidential, proprietary information or trade secrets, and provide why such materials, 
upon request, should not be disclosed by the City. Such information must be easily 
separable from the non-confidential sections of the proposal. 

  

mailto:RFP@health.nyc.gov
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ANNEX A 
City of New York 

Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH) 
Request for Proposals (RFP) for  

Community Emergency Network (CEN) Leaders 
PIN: 21EP000900R0X00 

Addendum #1 
 

Pre-Proposal Teleconference Materials 
(PowerPoint presentation slides and the sign-in sheet) 
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Attached is the Sign-in Sheet from the Pre-Proposal Teleconference: 

Name Organization Email 

Sonja Sharif Hey Girlie Travel LLC heygirlietravel@gmail.com 

Karen Jackson 
Staten Island Long 
Term Recovery 
Organization 

N/A 

Tanya Hardy 
Menard N/A N/A 

Mark Foggin  Mark Foggin Consulting mfoggin@gmail.com 

Adrian Hamblin Hamblin Marketing 
Consulting Adrian@hamblinmarketing.co 

Diana Hamlett Hey Girlie Travel heygirlietravel@gmail.com 

Priyanka Jain 3x3 Design priyankajain@3x3.co 

Sacred Walker Kuumba Health LLC sacred@sacredwalker.net 

Lisa Gaon 
CAMBA - FRANC Queens 
Recovery & Resiliency 
Committee 

Lisag@camba.org 

Sharmila Rao 
Thakkar 

Staten Island NFP 
Association/Staten 
Island COAD 

sharmila@sinfpa.org 

Priscilla Novas Future Prints Childcare, 
Inc. futureprintschildcare@gmail.com 

Leslie Boden 
Collective for 
Community, Culture 
and Environment 

lboden@collectiveforcce.com 

Sara Chamama 
Jewish Community 
Council of Greater 
Coney Island 

s.chamama@jccgci.org 

Wendy Tyson-
Wood 

Jean Kristensen 
Associates Wendy@JeanKristensenAssoicates.com 
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Ayo Harrington LES Ready N/A 

Damaris Reyes Good Old Lower East 
Side, Inc / LES Ready dreyes@goles.org 

Harold Jean-
Louis Smart Coos, Inc. harold@smartcoos.com 

Favio German Public Works Partners 
LLC Fgerman@Publicworkspartners.com 

Michelle 
McClymont 

YouthBuild Staten 
Island mcclymontm@youthbuildstatenisland.com 

Al Adams Vivid Marketing Group Info@vmgny.com 

Brenda Ng The Wright Media 
Group Drmwinfo@gmail.com 

Floyd Wright The Wright Media 
Group drmwinfo@gmail.com 

Ray Emmanuel 
Amethyst 
Environmental 
Consulting, LLC 

admin@amethystenvironmentalllc.com 

Denean 
Ferguson FRANC QR² N/A 

Megan Marini 3x3 MeganMarini@3x3.co 

Anthony 
Mampilly STEM Success Inc. N/A 

Hashim 
Campbell 

The Wright Media 
Group drmwinfo@gmail.com 
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ANNEX B 

City of New York 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH) 

Request for Proposals (RFP) for  
Community Emergency Network (CEN) Leaders 

PIN: 21EP000900R0X00 
Addendum #1 

 
Below are answers to the unduplicated questions received by DOHMH at the Pre-Proposal 
Teleconference and/or in writing by the Questions Due Date of May 29, 2020. Proposers are advised 
to read all questions and answers in order to have the most complete information. 
 
Answers provided in writing herein should be considered the final and official responses to these 
questions. 
 

1. I am interested in submitting a proposal. I was previously contracted as an individual 
vendor, does that still apply or are you looking to contract businesses? 
 
Answer:  The Contractor could be any type of entity that leads a Community 

Emergency Network as defined in Section II.A. of the RFP, and would have the 
experience set forth in Section III.B.1. of the RFP. 

 
2. Will you share the list of attendees on this call, along with contact info, with all 

participants? 
 

Answer: Please refer to Annex A of this addendum for the list of attendees at the pre-
proposal teleconference. 

 
3. The MWBE information is confusing.  Are they saying that an organization must 

contract out to a MWBE company?  And if so, what will we be contracting out for?  How 
can we get a better understanding of this information? 
 
Answer:  Please refer to Attachment F: Notice to All Prospective Contractors and 

Attachment G: Schedule B, which sets forth an M/WBE participation goal of 
13.9%. The goal may be met by self-performing the work if the proposer is a 
City-certified M/WBE, or it may be met through subcontracting to City-
certified M/WBE firms if the proposer is not a City-certified M/WBE.  
Proposers are required to either meet that participation goal, or request a 
Waiver on or before June 17, 2020.  In addition to the MWBE participation 
goal,   proposals submitted by New York State or City certified M/WBEs that 
meet or surpass the minimum threshold score will be given a 10% point 
preference of the total technical points earned in the evaluation of the 
proposal. 

 
4. Would we get a copy of the PowerPoint? 
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Answer:  Please refer to Annex A of this addendum for the PowerPoint presentation 
slides from the pre-proposal teleconference. 

 
5. Is there an electronic Proposal Packet? How do organization access the packet with all 

of the forms and attachments? 
 
Answer:  The RFP, including all attachments, is available for download on the DOHMH 

website at: 
https://www1.nyc.gov/site/doh/business/opportunities/contracting-
opportunities.page. 

 
6. Is there a file limit to the proposal? Or is a dropbox link acceptable to submit the 

proposal? 
 
Answer:  There are no DOHMH mandated file size limits.  Proposals must be submitted 

in a Portable Document Format (PDF) as an attachment to the email. 
Proposals submitted in a dropbox link will not be accepted.  

 
7. Who has this current contract? 

 
Answer: There is no current contract for these services. 
 

8. Award Allocation is that an equal split for each awardee or is it based on the cost 
proposal? 
 
Answer:  As indicated in Section II.D of the RFP, it is anticipated that the maximum 

available funding for each Contractor will be $60,000 annually for the six-year 
term, for an estimated total of $360,000 per contract, contingent on the 
availability of funds. 

 
9. On p. 2 RFP talks about e-mail submission, but p. 15 talks about paper submission. 

Please clarify.   
 
Answer:  As indicated in Section I.D. of the RFP, the Agency requires proposers to 

deliver proposals electronically via email at RFP@health.nyc.gov. Mailed or 
hand-delivered proposals will not be accepted by the Agency. Please see 
section IV.B. of this addendum for clarification. 

 
10. As an MWBE company, what form does our company need our non-MWBE sub-

contractor complete? 
 
Answer:  All Proposers except for those that are incorporated as non-profit 

organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code are 
required to complete Attachment G: Schedule B at the time of proposal. If 
awarded a contract, the Contractor must complete the Subcontractor 
Approval Form in order to obtain approval from DOHMH before any 
subcontractor’s work can commence.   

 

https://www1.nyc.gov/site/doh/business/opportunities/contracting-opportunities.page
https://www1.nyc.gov/site/doh/business/opportunities/contracting-opportunities.page
mailto:RFP@health.nyc.gov
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11. Will we be able to contact Erik or just submit questions to RFP@health.nyc.gov for 
questions before the bid date if we have additional questions or concerns? 
 
Answer:  Questions regarding this RFP must be transmitted in writing to the Agency 

Contact Person at RFP@health.nyc.gov by May 29, 2020, by 5:00 p.m. The 
Agency cannot guarantee a timely response to written questions regarding 
this RFP received less than one week prior to the proposal due date. 

 
12. Once the questions submitted are answered will they be posted for review as we 

prepare our bids?  This would be good to have immediately as questions arise as we 
complete the bid. 
 
Answer:  Yes. Please see Annex B of this addendum.  
 

13. Are there organizations that are already formally designated by DOHMH or other 
agencies as CEN Leaders? 
 
Answer:  DOHMH does not formally designate any organization as a “CEN Leader.” 

However, Section II.A of the RFP outlines the expectations of a CEN leader. 
 

14. Curious if the funding covers staff hires and what kinds of grant amounts are we 
looking at? 
 
Answer:  Please see answer to question 8 above for information on contract award 

amount(s). As indicated in Section IV.1.3 of the RFP, proposers must provide 
for each deliverable delineated in Attachment B of the RFP, an all-inclusive 
price that includes all costs associated with the performance of work, 
including (but not limited to) materials, labor, insurance, statutory and fringe 
benefits, taxes, overhead and profit.  

 
15. Are vendors able to utilize a subcontractor to assist with fulfilling the contract? 

 
Answer: Yes. However, subcontractors must be approved by DOHMH prior to 

commencement of subcontractor’s workas indicated in Section V.C. of the 
RFP, DOHMH reserves the right to award less or more than the full amount of 
funding requested and to modify the allocation of funds among contractors in 
the best interests of the City. 

 
16. In regards to Not-For-Profit & MWBE Organizations.  Not-For-Profits cannot be an 

MWBE Organization.  So are you asking only for MWBE organizations only for this 
contract?  Or can any organization apply? 
 
Answer:  Any organization can apply. Proposals submitted by New York State or City 

certified M/WBEs that meet or surpass the minimum threshold score will be 
given a 10% point preference of the total technical points earned in the 
evaluation of the proposal.  

 
17. For experience is the contractor him/herself required to have all the experience or is 

mailto:RFP@health.nyc.gov
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the organization and the TEAM? 
 
Answer:  The Contractor as defined in Section II.A of the RFP would have the 

experience set forth in Section III.B.1 of the RFP. 
 

18. Regarding the contract total, we understand that the contract can be awarded to up to 
5 companies or more.  Is the $1.8 million divided amongst the 5 companies over the 6 
year period [example: ($1.8 million divided by 5 companies) divided by 6 yrs = 
$60,000 a company] or is the contract for $1.8 million dollars divided amongst the 5 
companies but renewed annually [example: ($1.8 million / 5 companies) x 6 yrs] 
 
Answer:  Each contract resulting from this RFP has a term of 6 years with no option to 

renew. Please also see answer to question 8 above. 
 

19. Re. Goals of RFP - Will we have to focus on the three areas: Expansion; Integration; 
Collaboration; or can a CEN focus on 1 or 2 areas?   
 
Answer:  The Contractor is expected to complete all deliverables set forth in the RFP to 

achieve all three goals as described in Section II.A of the RFP.  
 

20. Under the Plan section for expectations does Thrive Mental Health 1st aid education 
for New York City qualify as an initiative, also? 
 
Answer:  As indicated in Section III.B.1.e. of the RFP, prospective contractor must have 

participated in events and initiatives in the past five (5) years in partnership 
with or offered by DOHMH, FEMA, or other federal/state/city agencies that 
have emergency management functions. Greater consideration will be given 
to proposers who have participated in response and/or recovery during past 
emergencies.   

 
21. During the pre-bid conference, the DOHMH representative mentioned that they would 

provide technical assistance and capacity building support on the CEN model besides 
funding. Can you elaborate on what the technical assistance and capacity building 
activities might look like? 
 
Answer:  Capacity building from DOHMH will include but may not be limited to project 

coordination, emergency planning, training, and exercising in addition to 
providing guidance on developing best practices for a Community Emergency 
Network (CEN). Please research Community Organizations Active in Disaster 
(COAD) and/or Long-term Recovery Groups to learn more about the geneses 
of CENs and the models they leverage. 

 
22. Section III.B.3.c.i mentions that the progress of hyperlocal preparedness within CEN 

would need to be presented to DOHMH on an ongoing basis as determined by DOHMH 
through participation in the community leadership sector at DOHMH-hosted meetings 
and events, soliciting feedback. Can DOHMH provide an estimate of the number of 
events that might be required to be attended? 
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Answer:  On average there are 6-12 DOHMH-hosted meetings and events a year.  
DOHMH will coordinate with the Contractor to determine which and how 
many meetings and events the Contractor will be required to attend 
throughout each contract year. 
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ANNEX C 

ATTACHMENT C 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA 
COMMUNITY EMERGENCY NETWORK (CEN) LEADERS 

PIN:  21EP000900R0X00 
 

Directions:   Complete Part I or Part II, whichever is applicable, and sign your name in Part 
III. 

 
Part I  
Listed below are the dates of issue for each Addendum received in connection with this 
RFP: 
 
Addendum # 1, Dated   June 10, 2020      
                         
Addendum # 2, Dated                                                                             , 20___       
 
Addendum # 3, Dated                                                                             , 20___        
 
Addendum # 4, Dated                                                                             , 20___    
 
Addendum # 5, Dated                                                                             , 20___ 
     
Addendum # 6, Dated                                                                             , 20___ 
 
Addendum # 7, Dated                                                                             , 20___ 
 
Addendum # 8, Dated                                                                             , 20___ 
 
Addendum # 9, Dated                                                                             , 20___  
 
Addendum #10, Dated                                                                            , 20___ 
 
Part II  
 
__________ No Addendum was received in connection with this RFP. 
 
Part III 
 
Proposer's Name:   ________________________________      Date:  ________________      
                        
Signature of Authorized Representative:  ______________________________________________ 
 


